
Rollins College
Rollins Scholarship Online

Executive Committee Minutes College of Arts and Sciences Minutes

11-7-2013

Minutes, Arts & Sciences Executive Committee
Meeting, Thursday, November 7, 2013
Arts & Sciences Executive Committee

Follow this and additional works at: http://scholarship.rollins.edu/as_ec
Part of the Educational Administration and Supervision Commons

This Minutes is brought to you for free and open access by the College of Arts and Sciences Minutes at Rollins Scholarship Online. It has been accepted
for inclusion in Executive Committee Minutes by an authorized administrator of Rollins Scholarship Online. For more information, please contact
wzhang@rollins.edu.

Recommended Citation
Arts & Sciences Executive Committee, "Minutes, Arts & Sciences Executive Committee Meeting, Thursday, November 7, 2013"
(2013). Executive Committee Minutes. Paper 8.
http://scholarship.rollins.edu/as_ec/8

http://scholarship.rollins.edu?utm_source=scholarship.rollins.edu%2Fas_ec%2F8&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://scholarship.rollins.edu/as_ec?utm_source=scholarship.rollins.edu%2Fas_ec%2F8&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://scholarship.rollins.edu/as_min?utm_source=scholarship.rollins.edu%2Fas_ec%2F8&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://scholarship.rollins.edu/as_ec?utm_source=scholarship.rollins.edu%2Fas_ec%2F8&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://network.bepress.com/hgg/discipline/787?utm_source=scholarship.rollins.edu%2Fas_ec%2F8&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://scholarship.rollins.edu/as_ec/8?utm_source=scholarship.rollins.edu%2Fas_ec%2F8&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
mailto:wzhang@rollins.edu


	  
	  

EXECUTIVE	  COMMITTEE	  MEETING	  
NOVEMBER	  07,	  2013	  

Agenda	  
 
 
I.	   Call	  to	  order	  
	  
II.	   Approval	  of	  minutes	  from	  10/17/13	  
	  
III.	   Reports	  
	  
IV.	   Old	  Business	  

Policy	  on	  policy	  and	  Policy	  on	  Credit	  Hours	  
Carol	  Bresnahan	  and	  Toni	  Holbrook	  

	  
VI.	   New	  Business	  

INB	  change	  in	  required	  internships	  
Carol	  Bresnahan	  and	  Claire	  Strom	  

	  
Dual	  Degree	  programs	  –	  protocol	  
Carol	  Lauer	  

	   	  



 
 

2	  

	  
	  
	  

EXECUTIVE	  COMMITTEE	  MEETING	  
NOVEMBER	  07,	  2013	  

Minutes	  
APPROVED	  

	  
PRESENT	  

Carol	  Lauer;	  Thomas	  Ouellette;	  Claire	  Strom;	  Julian	  Chambliss;	  Hoyt	  Edge;	  Yusheng	  Yao;	  Carol	  
Bresnahan;	  Robert	  Salmeron;	  Bob	  Smither	  
	  
Call	  to	  order	  
12:31PM	  by	  Carol	  Lauer	  
	  
Approval	  of	  minutes	  from	  10/17/13	  
Minutes	  approved	  unanimously	  
	  

Reports	  
President	  of	  the	  Faculty	  
Lauer	  reported	  on	  her	  meeting	  with	  President	  Duncan	  that	  included	  Thomas	  Ouellette	  (A&S	  VP);	  
Jim	  McLaughlin	  (CPS);	  Clay	  Singleton	  (Crummer);	  and	  by	  telephone,	  BOT	  Chair	  David	  Lord.	  Lauer	  
reported	  that	  the	  BOT	  had	  asked	  an	  attorney	  (James	  Edward	  “Trippe”	  Cheek)	  to	  “red-‐line”	  the	  
all-‐college	  and	  individual	  schools’	  by-‐laws	  looking	  for	  inconsistencies	  and	  other	  anomalies.	  Lauer	  
said	  she	  would	  reserve	  judgment	  on	  this	  until	  a	  report	  was	  generated	  but	  remarked	  that	  “it	  will	  
be	  interesting	  to	  see	  how	  people	  [faculty]	  will	  respond”	  when	  this	  is	  more	  widely	  reported.	  
Lauer	  reported	  that	  Darla	  Moore,	  with	  the	  Executive	  Committee’s	  (EC’s)	  blessing,	  has	  begun	  to	  
index	  and	  place	  online	  all	  of	  the	  college	  bylaws;	  that	  she	  may	  point	  out	  inconsistencies,	  etc.	  but	  
would	  make	  no	  changes.	  Darla	  Moore,	  perhaps	  with	  Olin	  Director	  Jonathan	  Miller	  will	  report	  to	  
the	  EC	  fin	  the	  S	  ’14	  semester.	  When	  asked	  about	  her	  previous	  attempt	  to	  “clean	  up”	  the	  A&S	  
bylaws,	  Claire	  Strom	  said	  that	  she’d	  “hate	  to	  relive	  that	  time.”	  Strom	  indicated	  that	  she	  learned	  
from	  that	  experience	  that	  issues	  with	  the	  bylaws	  “go[es]	  beyond	  purely	  legal	  concerns”	  and	  that	  
the	  bylaws	  are	  unclear	  and	  inconsistent.	  	  
	  
Lauer	  also	  reported	  that	  Duncan	  “seemed	  very	  open”	  to	  the	  creation	  of	  an	  ad	  hoc	  all-‐campus	  
committee	  to	  review	  tenure	  and	  promotion	  criteria.	  	  
	  
Lauer	  reported	  on	  these	  remarks	  by	  Lord:	  
• The	  BOT	  renews	  its	  assertion	  that	  it	  does	  not	  want	  faculty	  to	  be	  seated	  on	  the	  BOT;	  
• Faculty	  will	  be	  invited	  to	  participate	  in	  subcommittees	  of	  the	  BOT,	  as	  needed;	  particularly	  on	  

the	  Student	  Life	  committee	  
• BOT	  renewed	  its	  commitment	  to	  merit	  pay	  
• BOT	  has	  identified	  “academic	  excellence”	  as	  an	  area	  that	  will	  receive	  particular	  focus	  in	  the	  

year	  ahead,	  beginning	  at	  the	  next	  BOT	  meeting	  
• BOT	  priorities	  are	  shifting	  as	  things	  get	  “ticked	  off	  the	  list”	  completion	  of	  the	  Alfond	  Inn;	  

creation	  of	  the	  WP	  Institute;	  completion	  of	  the	  Bush	  building	  renovations	  
	  



 
 

3	  

Lauer	  encouraged	  faculty	  to	  attend	  to	  attend	  the	  upcoming	  faculty	  Holiday	  Party	  on	  Friday,	  
12/06/2014.	  She	  asked	  faculty	  to	  “spread	  the	  word”	  that	  this	  year’s	  party	  would	  “not	  [be]	  the	  
norm.”	  
	  
Lauer	  announced	  that	  she	  would	  be	  attending	  a	  conference	  in	  late	  November	  that	  would	  
necessitate	  her	  missing	  the	  A&S	  faculty	  meeting	  on	  11/21/2013.	  She	  asked	  Ouellette	  to	  run	  the	  
meeting	  in	  her	  absence	  and	  Julian	  Chambliss	  agreed	  to	  take	  meeting	  minutes.	  
	  
PSC	  
The	  Professional	  Standards	  Committee	  (PSC)	  is	  working	  with	  James	  Zimmerman	  to	  include	  the	  
faculty	  in	  the	  ongoing	  re-‐examination	  of	  course	  instructor	  evaluations	  (CIEs).	  PSC	  will	  convene	  
student	  focus	  groups	  and	  work	  to	  fold	  the	  faculty	  into	  the	  dialogue	  about	  the	  CIEs.	  
	  
PSC	  is	  working	  to	  clarify	  “what	  Service	  is	  and	  what	  constitutes	  it.”	  
	  
PSC	  is	  discussing	  whether	  “the	  granting	  of	  posthumous	  degrees	  should	  come	  through”	  the	  PSC.	  
The	  issue	  was	  raised	  because	  of	  the	  granting	  of	  a	  posthumous	  degree	  to	  a	  Holt	  student	  this	  
semester.	  
	  
AAC	  
Strom	  reported	  that	  the	  Academic	  Affairs	  Committee	  (AAC)	  was	  “in	  the	  middle	  of	  a	  lot	  of	  stuff”	  	  
and	  she	  will	  report	  in	  more	  detail	  at	  a	  subsequent	  meeting.	  
	  
Lauer	  asked	  about	  revisions	  to	  the	  INB	  major	  and	  if	  the	  AAC	  had,	  in	  fact,	  approved	  their	  latest	  
curricular	  revisions,	  which	  Lauer	  characterized	  as	  “major.”	  Strom	  confirmed	  that	  the	  most	  
recent	  set	  of	  revisions	  had	  been	  approved.	  Strom	  said	  that	  the	  revised	  INB	  major	  requirements	  
would	  make	  the	  major	  more	  accessible	  to	  students	  via	  consolidation	  of	  2-‐10	  core	  requirements	  
and	  additional	  options	  “to	  satisfy	  requirements	  for	  Area	  Studies	  electives	  and	  language	  studies.”	  
Strom	  characterized	  the	  revisions	  as	  “thoughtful”	  and	  said	  that	  the	  AAC	  approved	  the	  revision	  
pending	  a	  sit-‐down	  with	  the	  modern	  language	  faculty	  to	  review	  “minor	  questions”	  regarding	  the	  
modern	  language	  requirement.	  Additionally,	  Strom	  reported,	  INB	  is	  also	  looking	  at	  a	  new	  policy	  
for	  counting	  credits	  that	  are	  gained	  abroad.	  Strom	  said	  that	  the	  revised	  INB	  major	  represented	  a	  
reduction	  in	  the	  number	  of	  required	  courses,	  from	  18	  to	  16.	  
	  
Strom	  said	  that	  the	  Student	  Government	  Association	  this	  semester	  passed	  a	  resolution	  
requesting	  that	  professors	  submit	  mid-‐term	  grades	  to	  students.	  

	  
AAC	  approved	  minor	  revisions	  to	  the	  Asian	  Studies	  minor,	  too.	  
	  
Hoyt	  Edge	  raised	  a	  question	  about	  seeming	  overlap	  between	  the	  two	  business	  majors	  and	  that	  
the	  entire	  process	  “seemed	  further	  along”	  than	  he	  had	  thought	  it	  was:	  he	  reported	  that	  some	  of	  
his	  advisees	  had	  already	  migrated	  to	  the	  Business	  and	  Social	  Entrepreneurship	  major	  at	  CPS.	  
Bob	  Smither	  confirmed	  that	  some	  courses	  are	  “on	  the	  books.”	  	  
	  
F&S	  
Hoyt	  Edge	  reported	  that	  Bill	  Short	  met	  with	  Finance	  &	  Service	  (F&S)	  to	  walk	  committee	  
members	  through	  he	  budget,	  supplying	  “background	  and	  where	  we	  are.”	  Edge	  expressed	  



 
 

4	  

concern	  that	  the	  stipends	  that	  faculty	  received	  this	  year	  would	  not,	  in	  fact,	  be	  folded	  into	  base	  
salary,	  going	  forward.	  
	  
Edge	  said	  the	  committee	  is	  discussing	  the	  need	  for	  an	  “idling	  policy”	  to	  “discourage	  or	  outlaw	  
cars,	  busses	  or	  trucks”	  from	  idling	  on	  campus	  for	  more	  than	  90	  seconds.	  Edge	  said	  that	  “athletic	  
busses	  are	  known	  to	  idle	  for	  90	  minutes	  or	  more.”	  Edge	  reported	  that	  “it	  looks	  like	  committee	  is	  
heading	  toward	  approving	  the	  policy.”	  
	  
SGA	  
Robert	  Salmeron	  reported	  that	  the	  Student	  Government	  Association	  (SGA)	  is	  considering	  a	  
proposal	  to	  “dismantle”	  the	  Holt	  School’s	  SGA	  and	  to	  incorporate	  it	  into	  the	  A&S	  SGA,	  with	  Holt	  
electing	  four	  representatives.	  
	  
Salmeron	  reported	  that	  the	  SGA	  is	  looking	  at	  forming	  “a	  student	  organization	  ad	  hoc	  oversight	  
committee	  to	  regulate	  and	  oversee”	  student	  organizations	  
	  
Salmeron	  said	  that	  the	  SGA	  would	  like	  to	  issue	  weekly	  reports	  to	  disseminate	  information	  in	  an	  
easily	  accessible	  way	  “that	  students	  will	  actually	  read.”	  

	  
Salmeron	  said	  that	  Jeff	  Eisenbarth	  attended	  a	  meeting	  to	  discuss	  the	  budgeting	  process	  and	  that	  
students	  seemed	  to	  find	  it	  “really	  enlightening.”	  Salmeron	  said	  that	  Lewis	  Duncan	  is	  slated	  to	  
meet	  with	  the	  SGA	  on	  12/04/2014.	  
	  
SLC	  
Yusheng	  Yao	  said	  that	  students	  have	  again	  raised	  with	  the	  Student	  Life	  Committee	  (SLC)	  the	  
issue	  of	  housing	  a	  pub	  on	  campus.	  Yao	  said	  that	  Ken	  Miller	  was	  invited	  to	  speak	  to	  the	  
committee	  about	  this	  and	  that	  Miller	  posited	  that	  a	  pub	  at	  Rollins	  could	  not	  be	  “financially	  
solvent”	  because	  only	  25%	  of	  Rollins	  students	  can	  legally	  imbibe	  and	  a	  liquor	  license	  is	  very	  
expensive	  
	  
Yao	  said	  that	  Campus	  Safety	  informed	  SL	  that	  “reports	  of	  sexual	  offense,	  [and]	  domestic	  abuse”	  
have	  increased	  significantly	  and	  that	  the	  higher	  numbers	  are	  almost	  certainly	  the	  result	  of	  
“increased	  education	  and	  awareness.”	  
	  
Yao	  said	  that	  Ken	  Miller	  from	  Campus	  Safety	  reported	  that	  student	  requests	  for	  “courtesy	  
escort[s]”	  had	  reached	  unreasonable	  levels;	  that	  such	  requests	  were	  “averaging	  nine	  hundred	  
per	  week.”	  Carol	  Bresnahan	  noted	  that	  other	  institutions	  had	  instituted	  a	  “darkness	  policy”	  to	  
stem	  daytime	  requests	  for	  courtesy	  escorts.	  
	  
Yao	  said	  that	  Miller	  also	  said	  that	  Campus	  safety	  officers	  cannot	  enforce	  the	  existing	  smoking	  
policy	  on	  campus.	  Bresnahan	  noted	  “[smoking]	  violations	  almost	  everywhere.”	  “Frankly	  it’s	  a	  
failed	  policy,”	  Bresnahan	  added	  and	  offered	  that	  it	  may	  be	  time	  “to	  move	  to	  a	  smoke-‐free	  
campus.”	  Lauer	  asked	  Bresnahan	  if	  she	  would	  speak	  with	  Human	  Relations	  regarding	  the	  
unenforceability	  of	  the	  current	  smoking	  policy;	  Bresnahan	  said	  she	  “would	  love	  to	  have	  that	  
mandate.”	  Strom	  mentioned	  “naughty”	  smokers	  who	  flagrantly	  ignore	  the	  current	  policy;	  
Bresnahan	  ended	  the	  discussion	  by	  pointing	  to	  additional	  examples	  of	  abuse	  of	  the	  current	  
policy	  and	  called	  making	  Rollins	  smoke-‐free	  “a	  really	  important	  thing.”	  

	  



 
 

5	  

Old	  Business	  
Policy	  on	  Policy	  and	  Policy	  on	  Credit	  Hours	  (attached)	  
Bresnahan	  reported	  that	  no	  one	  had	  raised	  concerns	  about	  the	  policy	  on	  policies	  except	  a	  “late	  
set	  of	  comments	  from	  Clay	  Singleton”	  but	  that	  he	  was	  calling	  for	  “very	  small”	  emendations	  “that	  
did	  not	  change	  the	  substance”	  of	  the	  policy.	  When	  Strom	  asked	  if	  the	  comments	  “were	  just	  
cosmetic”	  Bresnahan	  responded	  that	  they	  were.	  The	  EC	  voted	  unanimously	  to	  approve	  the	  
policy	  on	  policy	  and	  the	  policy	  defining	  credit	  hours	  (officially	  called	  AC	  200	  Policy	  on	  Definition	  
of	  Credit	  Hours;	  see	  attachment	  1	  on	  pages	  7-‐13).	  

	  
New	  Business	  

By-‐law	  Change	  
The	  EC	  discussed	  the	  status	  of	  the	  by-‐law	  change	  offered	  by	  W.	  Robert	  Sherry	  on	  behalf	  of	  the	  
Faculty	  Evaluation	  Committee	  (FEC)	  at	  the	  last	  A&S	  faculty	  meeting	  (after	  spirited	  discussion	  the	  
motion	  was	  tabled).	  The	  EC	  discussed	  ways	  to	  clarify	  the	  motion	  to	  and	  address	  some	  of	  the	  
concerns	  raised	  by	  faculty	  at	  the	  A&S	  meeting:	  
• The	  motion	  should	  make	  clear	  that	  the	  candidate	  her/himself	  is	  not	  a	  member	  of	  the	  

Candidate	  Evaluation	  Committee	  (CEC);	  that	  the	  call	  for	  confidentiality	  covers	  the	  CEC	  
members	  but	  not	  the	  candidate	  

• The	  motion	  does	  not	  prevent	  the	  CEC	  Chair	  from	  speaking	  to	  the	  candidate	  after	  the	  CEC	  
has	  convened	  and	  voted,	  to	  inform	  the	  candidate	  of	  the	  CEC’s	  vote	  

• The	  motion	  should	  make	  clear	  that	  the	  call	  for	  confidentiality	  applied	  not	  only	  to	  CEC	  
members	  but	  to	  FEC	  members	  as	  well	  

	  
Lauer	  suggested	  that	  Sherry	  withdraw	  the	  (entire)	  motion	  at	  the	  next	  A&S	  faculty	  meeting	  and	  
to	  report	  that	  a	  revised	  policy	  regarding	  confidentiality	  would	  be	  offered	  at	  a	  subsequent	  A&S	  
meeting.	  
	  
Several	  issues	  were	  discussed	  near	  the	  close	  of	  the	  meeting.	  Bresnahan	  registered	  concern	  that	  
the	  revised	  requirement	  for	  the	  INB	  major	  regarding	  international	  internships	  “violates	  the	  
understanding	  articulated	  when	  [Bresnahan]	  readmitted	  INB	  to	  Arts	  and	  Sciences.”	  “I	  am	  
troubled	  that	  a	  department	  that	  claimed	  they	  were	  intent	  on	  becoming	  more	  international,”	  
Bresnahan	  said,	  “is	  seemingly	  becoming	  less	  international.”	  Edge	  said	  that	  his	  recollection,	  when	  
the	  INB	  major	  was	  initially	  proposed,	  was	  that	  students	  could	  always	  opt	  for	  either	  “an	  
international	  internship	  or	  an	  international	  experience.”	  Bresnahan	  reported	  that	  Sharon	  Agee	  
said	  that	  INB	  in	  “do[es]	  not	  have	  to	  be	  globally	  focused	  in	  any	  way;”	  Bresnahan	  expressed	  
concern	  about	  the	  disconnect	  between	  “what’s	  reported	  to	  her	  and	  what	  is	  currently	  in	  
practice.”	  
	  
Lauer	  said	  that	  she	  is	  “a	  little	  confused”	  regarding	  whether	  or	  not	  students	  in	  the	  Jindal/Rollins	  
initiative	  will	  receive	  dual	  degrees.	  Lauer	  asked	  how	  the	  process	  for	  moving	  Jindal	  students	  
through	  Rollins	  and	  toward	  graduation	  “would	  differ	  from	  what	  Rollins	  currently	  does	  with	  
AA/transfer	  students.”	  Bresnahan	  said	  that	  Jindal	  students	  would	  be	  “coming	  as	  Juniors,	  
basically;”	  Strom	  concurred.	  Bresnahan	  said	  that	  her	  understanding	  was	  that	  “Jonathan	  Walz	  
intends	  to	  seek	  some	  kind	  of	  approbation	  [regarding	  the	  Jindal	  initiative]	  from	  the	  faculty”	  at	  
the	  next	  A&S	  meeting.	  Bresnahan	  characterized	  this	  as	  a	  welcoming,	  gracious	  expression	  of	  
support,	  “rather	  than	  an	  up	  or	  down	  vote.”	  Returning	  to	  the	  question	  of	  the	  dual	  degrees,	  
Bresnahan	  said	  that	  “Jindal	  may	  call	  this	  a	  dual	  degree	  program	  but	  it	  is	  not	  one	  from	  Rollins’	  



 
 

6	  

viewpoint.”	  Bresnahan	  said	  that	  she	  has	  heard	  the	  question,	  ‘What’s	  in	  it	  for	  Jindal?’	  raised	  
amongst	  faculty	  at	  colloquia;”	  Bresnahan	  said,	  “I	  think	  [Jindal]	  want[s]	  to	  use	  Rollins’	  existing	  
recruitment	  mechanism”	  but	  that’s	  all	  she	  can	  glean.	  
	  
Strom	  pointed	  out	  that	  a	  certificate	  program	  for	  graphic	  designers	  and	  for	  paralegals	  “have	  
cropped	  up”	  via	  the	  Rollins	  College	  Lifelong	  Learning	  program	  (RCLL).	  Strom	  expressed	  concern	  
that	  these	  programs	  would	  reportedly	  offered	  by	  a	  for-‐profit	  company;	  that	  no	  faculty	  has	  
participated	  or	  otherwise	  approved	  these	  nascent	  programs.	  Bresnahan	  responded	  that	  this	  was	  
not	  an	  academic	  issue	  because	  the	  courses	  in	  question	  “are	  not	  credit-‐bearing	  and	  cannot	  be	  
transferred.”	  Referencing	  Dean	  Richard’s	  comment	  about	  the	  attractiveness	  of	  the	  Rollins	  name,	  
Edge	  asked,	  “Is	  this	  a	  question	  of	  protecting	  our	  brand?”	  Strom	  asked	  why	  the	  programs	  could	  
or	  should	  “pass	  this	  through	  the	  AAC.”	  Lauer	  responded	  that	  she	  “would	  be	  happy	  to	  talk	  to	  
Dave”	  Richard	  regarding	  the	  proper	  vetting	  of	  the	  courses.	  Bresnahan	  said:	  “Holt	  has	  to	  be	  the	  
place	  for	  experimentation;	  we	  have	  to	  go	  with	  it	  if	  its	  going	  to	  help	  Rollins	  out;”	  Strom	  agreed	  
but	  petitioned	  for	  at	  least	  “some	  oversight:”	  perhaps	  an	  advisory	  board	  and	  a	  streamlined	  
approval	  process.	  
	  
Closing	  the	  meeting,	  Lauer	  announced	  that	  Sherry	  and	  Phil	  Deaver	  would	  attend	  the	  next	  EC	  
meeting	  to	  discuss	  the	  FEC	  proposal	  and	  the	  MFA	  in	  Creative	  Writing	  program,	  respectively.	  
	  
Lauer	  adjourned	  the	  meeting	  at	  1:52PM.	  
	   	  



 
 

7	  

ATTACHMENT	  1	  
	  

	  



 
 

8	  

	  
	  
	  
	  



 
 

9	  

	  
	  
	  
	  



 
 

10	  

	  
	  
	  



 
 

11	  

	  
	  
	  
	  



 
 

12	  

	  
	  
	  
	  



 
 

13	  

	  
	  
	  


	Rollins College
	Rollins Scholarship Online
	11-7-2013

	Minutes, Arts & Sciences Executive Committee Meeting, Thursday, November 7, 2013
	Arts & Sciences Executive Committee
	Recommended Citation



